Sacramento River Delta Historical Society

NEWSLETTER

“For what is the present, after all, but a growth out of the past.” — Walt Whitman

NEWSLETTER

VOLUME 28, NUMBER 1

JUNE 2008

President’s Notes

I hope you are all enjoying a great summer, and |
want to begin with an apology for our newsletter
being late!! All my fault, due to work obligations and
a graduation, I'm behind! On to getting on track and
again, wanting to begin with recognizing our
Newsletter Chairperson Esther Koopman and writer
Kathy Hutchinson! Kudos for handling our biannual
mailing!

We started the year with our annual potluck on
January 16 with a great turnout of more than 150
attendees. Our featured speaker was Dick Marshall
who did a fabulous job of describing Clarksburg's Old
Sugar Mill and the history of sugar beet production.
Our next meeting was on March 18 when Carol
Jensen shared highlights of her book "Images of
America - The California Delta" which was a book
started by the late Hal Schell. Her stories were
enjoyable and very informative. Bill Wells also
spoke personally about the life of Hal Schell, a local
Delta legend.

April and May's highlight was an exhibit at the Sutter
Club in downtown Sacramento featuring the
Sacramento River Delta Historical Soctety and our
rich agricultural history. Debbie Chan, Tom Herzog,
my husband Jim and 1 designed and set up a display
that was shared with folks for 2 months. We then
were the featured topic at a luncheon on May 14th. It
was a great venue for accomplishing yet another one
of our Society's goals to educate and expose others to
our rich delta history.

Other activities have been continuing throughout the
past 6 months - We've progressed with oral histories
and work on the Locke Boarding House project. We
are also working to make our membership data base
current. We are proud to have 205 members at last
count, and we need to make sure memberships are

current. One more accomplishment is all the work
that is done in the Resource Center each week. Big
thanks to Bobbi Collier and Esther Koopman for their
diligence and dedication to the preservation of
historical treasures!

Mark your calendars to join us for the next General
Meeting, September 16™ at the Jean Harvie
Community Center! Enjoy a great summer!

Judy

WELCOME NEW MEMBERS FOR 2008

Jack Carmany from Sacramento

Jerry & Greta Dusa from Walnut Grove

Wm. P. Rick Dwyer from Folsom

Carl W. Jones Jr. from Roseville

Derrell & Lorna Kelsa from Clarksburg

Jason Peltier from Walnut Grove

Kevin Thompson & Kate Bould from Walnut Grove
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WATER TRANSPORTATION

Part One ,

Schooners, Packets and Freighters
By Kathleen Graham Hutchinson

Between 1850 and 1930 “the blast of the steam whistle
and the splash of a paddlewheel” was common on the
Sacramento and San Joaquin rivers. The CTC’s “Fort
Sutter” would sound a long deep throated whistle
approaching Courtland at 9 p.m. which indicated a
landing; two whistles indicated an imminent departure. It
would arrive in San Francisco at 9 a.m., leaving at 6 p.m.
and arriving at Courtland at 3 a.m. daily.

In modern time, the earliest vessels to ply the river and
sloughs were sailboats. This was an arduous task. Not only
was the river very winding in places but the riparian
vegetation, notably tall tress, cut the wind from the water’s
surface. It took ten days to five weeks to reach Stockton or
Sacramento. “The ‘delta breeze’ vigorously ruffled the
tops of the trees, but [rarely] reached the surface.”
Becalmed sailing boats resorted to warping upstream long
stretches. Using a rowboat to warp, a deck hand took a
towline ahead of a craft, fixing the line to a stout tree. The
line was slowly pulled in until the boat was abreast of the
tree; one reason a considerable number of sailing vessels
did not return to the San Francisco Bay and became
converted hulks in Sacramento and Stockton.

Steamboats were subsequently introduced. In 1848 the
first side-wheel steamboats “Senator” and “New World”
began service followed closely by the “McKim”.

Rates on the McKim::
Cabin passage to $30.00
Deck passage to 20.00
Berth passage to 5.00
Meals (cabin 1.50
SF to Benicia 15.00
Heavy freight per 2.50
Measurement of 1.00
McGowan, Sac to SF Shipping, p. 47

Quickly built and modified small “Mosquito Boats”
swarmed the waterways (rowboats converted to steam
power — oil luggers with boiler — and extended
whaleboats.) These early steamboats used wood to fuel the
boilers to satisfy the need. Almost all the riparian forest
was harvested. By 1900, most used fuel oil, the use of
which was delayed a number of years after the oil-fired
“Julia” exploded in Vallejo in 1888.

Generally, the larger steamboats tended to have a 9%
foot draft and usually a single stack aft the pilot house and
sternwheel. The early boats carried both passengers and
freight and some were designated U.S. Mail packets. The
swift “Antelope” was called the “Wells Fargo Gold Boat.”
It carried California gold bullion and Nevada silver bullion
from Sacramento to San Francisco. Among the specialized

areas aboard the larger ships was the space labeled the
“China hold” for passengers from the “Celestial Kingdom”
(China). These shallow draft vessels were the Delta’s
lifeline to the outside world, linking socially and
economically San Francisco, Sacramento and Stockton.

Between 1852 and 1853 410 ships maneuvered the river
between San Francisco and Sacramento carrying 165,000
tons of freight and some 1500 passengers. Some of each
continued upstream to Colusa or the head of navigation
Red Bluff. By 1910 the lower Sacramento River between
Rio Vista and its confluence with the San Joaquin River
was straightened and dredged removing a bottleneck of
bends placing the channel to the east against the
Montezuma Hills. The old channel was left to meander
along the east side of Decker Island.

The most glamorous early side wheel double stack
steamboat was the famed “Chrysopolis” which steamed
overnight from San Francisco to Sacramento between
1860 and 1875. She set a record on the run never to be
broken. She was noted for her fancy cabins, fine art
displayed (Thomas Hill, Charles Nahl, William Keith,
Albert Bierstadt) and service. During the era she received
many challenges to race, notably from Captain Kidd’s
“Nevada” and from the “Washoe”. Her running mate was
the ill-fated “Yosemite” whose starboard boiler burst
October 12, 1865 while at Rio Vista which resulted in
heavy injuries and loss of life.

Cal. Bteam Navigation Lo.

o T——

The Fast and Splendid Steamers
OHRYSOPOLIS, E. C. M. CHADWICK, Master.
ANTELOPE, E. A POOLE, Master.

BOLIPSE, and QUBEN CITY,

Will Leave for
San HFrancisco, daily

Sundays excepted, at 2 0Clock P. M.,
Frome the Foot of K aStroct.

— ¥ o R—
XNE A ER SET S5 W0 X XN Xa 3EN,
AND INTERMEDIATE LANDINGS, (Bvery Dayy)
TOUNG AMBRICA, LITTLETON, Master, and
SWALLOW, SUMMERS, Master,
Wil Leuve on Alternatc Days, at 6 A, M.
[
FORB COLUSA, RED BLUFFS,
AND INTERMEDIATE LANDINGS,
SAM SOULE, Wi PIERCE, Master.
SWAN, 5. C. RODGERS, Master.
GEIVE, & FOSTER, Master
VICTOR, , Master.
Wilt Teave for the sbavensmed Placcs, on TUBSDIAYE, THTRS.
DAYS, and SATURDAYS, at 8 A.M., from Stoveship foot of J St.

For Freight or Passage by any of the above Boats, apply on
board, or at the Oifice of the Culit%min Steam Navigation %‘ro.\ on
board Brig Globe.
. A. REDINGTON,

W. EH. TA.YLOR.,'}Agenm'
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Steamboat races were a popular gambling sport in the
early years — terrible boiler explosions resulted from
overheating or from taking a bend too sharply thereby
exposing the boiler ribs. Tar pitch and later oil used when
racing are highly flammable. Often chunks of potato were
used to plug weak spots, acting like glue. The boats
tailgated thereby losing a stern or were forced up a mud
bank, thereby losing a bow. Steamboat Slough was a drag
strip because it contained fewer snags and shoals and was
a shorter distance point to point, notwithstanding bends.
The last steamboat races were in 1938 and 39 between the
retired mail packet “E.R. Chase” and the “Delta Queen” in
’38 and between the “Delta King” and the “Delta Queen”
in ’39. The “Delta Queen” lost both. The book “Historical
Sites and Shipwrecks Along the Sacramento River
between Sacramento City and Sherman Island” both
catalogs sites and discusses the river wrecks extensively. A
surprising number are near Rio Vista, Cache Slough, north
of Steamboat Slough, foot of Grand Island, etc. although
the wrecks are found everywhere.

The California Steam Navigation Company dominated
river commerce beginning in 1854. In 1880 the “Modoc”
and “Apache” were put into river service. In 1871 it was
bought by Southern Pacific interests. Until 1907 the
former CSN boats were the only ships offering regular
overnight service between San Francisco and Sacramento.

Considering the daily routine
of steamers docking at river
landing sites, it is surprising that
Jew photographers captured the
event, Here, in a classic image of
' Sacramento River life of the early
i 19005, the Southern Pocific’s Modoc
receives a shipment of cantaloupes
with Chinese farm workers
performing the labor.
SACRAMENTD Arcivis & Musiunm
Cotiection CENTER
Eugene Hepting Collection
1985/24/3868

S.P. Bulletin August 1919

Fruit Boats in Service.

Steamers Apache, Cherokee and Fruto
have been placed in service to handle
fruit shipments from points on the
Sacramento River to Sacramento, for
shipment by rail to Eastern markets.
This is the first season the Apache has
served as a fruit boat, after having
operated for 38 years in the passenger
and freight service between San
Francisco and Sacramento.

When the repairs’ to the steamer
Navajo were completed she relieved the
Apach e on the San
Francisco-Sacramento rouie, which
made the Apache available for the fruit
service. Owing {o the large carrying
capacity of the Apache she has proved a
valuable addition to the *“*fruit fleet.!’

Captain D. ¥. Petziner is in command
of the Apache, Captain Eldon Chipman
of the Cherokee, and Captain Thos. F.

Thovbrmmw ~F Flan Feridn

The California Transportation Company (CTC) formed in
1875, became one of the largest river transportation
companies. Among local Delta stockholders were Reuben
Kercheval of Grand Island and Solomon Runyon of the
Pierson District. George A. Smith of Courtland eventually
owned 50% and in the late 1890°s until 1900 he was
President.

| cahfnmmTranspurtat’n Go

m;u nld’ Puunnr stum e

PRIDE OF THE RIVER
r—and-
'CAPITAL OITY

-s:euue-to and Bam ¥ramcisco 'Dt!lh
Sundsy: Rxcepted,

Leave SiéfamentorFront and n Btrutl.
‘Now Clty Whl.rt. 5:00 p. ;

' Leavu San -Francisco, . ur No. l,
Berth 56 centa, ||

JIackson Btnat. at 5 . m.
3. & ‘onEwW, m-t-

B‘uﬂ $1.80.
'l‘e!en’hnn- Muin Iﬂ’.

STEAMER |
NAVAJO|

Olelvu foot of K!
» J Street daily, exceptl

Sunday, at & v, m. |
No stops. _en route, |
:rr vinx San Fran- |
cigco :
Fare 31.50 Be!‘th 50e.{!

| STEAMERS |
{MODOC and APACHE |

leave 10:30 &, . daily. excen: Bunday,
atopplng at  all Intermedtate points,
] Arrivs Snu tg‘r%r&c!uco 11:30 p. m. Fare
Ber on

Southern Pacific
Netherlands Route

Elxhth and K 8ts. Steamer Lndg
Courtesy Bitl Stritzel .

In response to the river silting as a result of hydraulic
mining, CTC removed its large ships from river service
until the river scoured itself. Among those removed were
the rebuilt “Yosemite”, “Chrysopolis” (which was to be
reworked to be the double-end Bay Ferryboat “Oakland™)
and the “Capital City”. They returned the boats sometime
after 1884. During the interim a fleet of smaller boats
roamed the waterways and among them were the “Julia”,
“Amador”, and “Sacramento.”

R

CTC owned a shipyard on Wood Island off Rio Vista
where the company built the “Reform 2” (1898), “Onisbo”
(1900) and the “Isleton” (1902). In 1904 the company
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bought the Union Transportation Company of Stockton.
The “Capt. Weber” came in the deal and the company
made it into a premier passenger vessel plying between
Stockton and Clarksburg. A heavy emphasis was placed on
accommodations. In 1907 the company began to occupy a
prominent location at the new City Wharf in Sacramento at
the foot of M Street (Capitol Ave.) and inaugurated
through passenger and freight service between Sacramento

Passenger Steamers
“Pride of the River”
“Isleton” f‘

SAN FRANCISCO ~— SACRAMENTO
AND '

RIO VISTA, ISLETON, RYDE, WALNUT GROVE,
COURTLAND AND WAY LANDINGS
Arrive ,
Sacramento....7:00 4.M.
8an Francisco. .6:00 A.M.

Leave
San Francisco. . 6:00 pM.
Sacramento. .. .500 P.M.

THE DELTA

ROUTE

The C.T: .C’a.’s handsomely designed Isleton is shown leaving the dock ot Sacramento sometime around
1930,_ with a fall load of, passengers. As illustrated by the period timetable, the Isteton, along with her
;Imnmg weate Pride of the River, provided a class of passenger and,  freight service that had long been
e skzndfzrd af the river trade. By the carly years of the Great Depression, it was no longer financially

JSeasible to continue their operation. The Isleton and Pride of the River were retired in 1932,
SACRAMENTO ARCHivEs & Muserv CoLLection CERTER
McCurry Company Colleetion
1973/003/0246

and San Francisco. In 1910 Alfred E. Anderson, son of a
CTC co-founder Nelson E. Anderson, decided that the
CTC needed to compete in passenger service with the
Southern Pacific (formerly CSN). The “Capital City” was
launched in 1910 followed in 1913 by the “Fort Sutter”.
The “Capital City” was built in San Francisco at the
Hunter’s Point Shipyard by Schultz, Robertson and Shuitz
and christened by George A. Smith’s sister. In the 1890’s
passenger traffic was less than 15,000 but in 1913 alone it
had reached a zenith of 213,000. Traffic was cyclical
increasing in the spring and summer months.

The “Fort Sutter”, “Pride of the River” and “Capital
City” were all express packets and only stopped at town
wharves. The “Delta Queen” and “Delta King” stopped

only at Rio Vista. It has been said that George Greene on
Merrittt Island sometimes successfully signaled them to
stop. He then bribed them with a wagonload of
watermelons for the crew.

The Southern Pacific had upgraded and launched the
“Navajo” in 1909 and the “Seminole” in 1910. Other SP
boats were the “Modoc™, “Apache”, and “Cherokee”. The
CTC held an advantage over the SP because of negative
feelings toward the SP caused by SP’s business practices.

Nevertheless, the SP provided “street car service”. The
Southern Pacific bay boats “left San Francisco at 8 o’clock
in the morning, carrying mail and express as well as
freight for river ports. They had comfortable steamer
chairs for the broad upper decks and they were famous for
their meals. The sternwheel steamers had a very easy
motion in contrast to propeller steamers. The boat first
stopped at Benicia, thereafter, since it was an “express
steamer” it stopped only at Rio Vista, Isleton, Walnut
Grove, Courtland, Freeport and Clarksburg and finally
Sacramento.”

Freight, however, was the biggest reason the riverboats
plied the waterways. In the beginning there were over 200
landings at which the boats would stop when casually
heralded. In 1919 the SP hauled 700,000 tons.

In the Delta’s early days “farmers traded the produce of
their fields for all sorts of merchandise which the boats
carried. On the return trip the boats were loaded down with
poultry, pigs, calves, wild game, garden truck, fruit, hides,
dairy products, and anything that could be raised on the
low land. Deck hands offered another friendly service by
tying newspapers and magazines to a stick and throwing it
to farmers waiting for the trading boats to pass by.”

By 1918 there were 120 landings, but the companies
found that casual stopping to pick up insignificant loads
slowed their schedules by two to six hours. In order to
“consolidate” landings they petitioned the California State
Railroad Commission (now P.U.C.) for authority to make
a minimum charge of $2.50 per “special landing”. Before
the late “20°s and early ‘30°s most produce was hauled to
the market by boat.

If a shipper didn’t have a formal landing, a brush
landing of prunings was made on a flat spot. The riverboat
captains’ knew the owners of the landings whether it was
day or night. For a “special landing” a red lantern or flag
signaled the CTC or a white the SP. If the flag or lantern
was out, the captain would sound the whistle before
docking. The boats always came alongside the wharves
and landings, never prow first. Lug boxes of pears waiting
on a landing, stacked five feet high and held together by a
nailed on strip of board were rolled by the stevedores up
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the gangplanks on hand trucks (dollies with steel wheels).
Sacks of beans were handled similarly: The men would
push the hand truck of sacks down the levee on a steep
run which zigzagged to the dock. The run was curbed
with six by sixes and the stevedores crimped the hand
truck wheel against the curb to brake, but on the last
straightaway to the gangplank, they 'let her out and
whooshed” down onto the deck running with 600 pounds
of beans.

A farmer could ship to a broker in San Francisco,
QOakland, Sacramento or Stockton, using one of the
shipping lines or he could use the commission broker's
boat, such as those of Hunt-Hatch of San Francisco and
Oakland, Porter Bros. of Sacramento, Thacker Bros. of
Chicago, or the Earl Fruit Company. Boats also carried
produce to the local railheads at Locke and Hood and to
and from the canneries on the river bank. (Del Monte
shipped heavily via CTC.) It is reported that the Southern
Pacific warehouse in Locke shipped 50 railroad cars each
of pears and celery per day in the high season, which
testifies to the amount of produce the boats hauled.

These large wharves accommodated tiers of boats, i.e.
three boats parallel and usually employed a wharfinger to
direct traffic.

Hay alone remained to be shipped under sail in
specialized hay schooners. Large quantities of hay were
shipped on scow schooners to San Francisco for the city’s
equine population. The hay was bound in 5-wire bales
each weighing 300 pounds. Growers moved the bales
down slides on the levee to the moored schooners. On the
schooners the hay was piled as high as possible. The
yardarms were raised to accommodate the load. The
helmsman steered from a platform atop the hay. (One of
these boats belongs to the San Francisco Maritime
Museum.)

Hay schooner

By the 1930°s truck transportation, auto or bus
transportation and rail transportation ate heavily into river
boat traffic. In 1930 the SP discontinued service. In 1932
the CTC merged with the Sacramento Navigation Co
(SNTC) and the Fay Transportation Co.

The SNTC was founded in 1869 by Thomas Dwyer as
the Sacramento Wood Co. In 1885 it became Sacramento
Navigation Transportation Co. In 1920 it merged with the
Farmers Transportation Co. Its business was almost
entirely upriver from Sacramento and was severely
affected by the studge from hydraulic mining which filled
the river. It merged with the Fay Transportation Co. and
the two became known as Sacramento-San Joaquin River
Lines. By 1932 they had merged with the CTC to become
known as the “River Lines”.

The Fay Co. was formed in the early 1900s. The two Fay
brothers operated a small steamer between Sacramento and
Walnut Grove. Remember the name “Cap Fay” in Walnut
Grove? In 1907 they leased space at the new Sacramento
City Wharf. Later they moved headquarters to Rio Vista
and were known as N. Fay and Son Company. In later
years they returned to Sacramento. “They (were) one of
the earliest firms to operate diesels on the Sacramento
River and are credited with the local introduction of the
modern system of cargo loading using pallets and small
electric lift trucks.”

The River Lines retired the “Isleton” and “Pride of the
River”. These two steamers had primarily serviced way
landings (flag and lantern.) The “King” and “Queen”
remained the only passenger packets on the run. Service on
the San Joaquin River was discontinued in 1932 with the
retirement of the “Capital City” and “Fort Sutter”.

In 1934 and 1936 the major maritime strikes in San
Francisco seriously damaged the company. In 1941 the
“King” and “Queen” were taken out of service. There
remained after that only lighter and tugboat traffic.

e - SR g %
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Towboats such as the “Dover” and the “Fruto” had been
plying the river for many years towing barges (with
helmsman) and lighters (without helmsman) on long
towlines. A barge could hold as much as the foredeck of a
riverboat. The San Joaquin #4 “held the title of the
Sacramento River’s most sturdy towboat 1885-1932”.
Youngsters were told not to stay on the outside of a curve
or levee bend when the towboat “San Joaquin” or any
other towboat, for that matter, passed because the barge
(without helmsman) or lighter would swing wide and
strike the bank. In 1932 a large portion of the Sacramento
fleet burned while docked on the Yolo side. Among those
lost were Flora, Dover, Red Bluff, Colusa, San Joaquin 1
& 2, San Jose, Vallejo, Sacramento and Jacinto.

The towboats were succeeded by tractor tugboats which
pulled via a short towline or pushed the barge or lighter
which were commonly called “barges”. After World War
II they hauled sugar beets, beet pulp, sugar, molasses,
grains, gravel and rock, petroleum products, caustic and
acids, moth-ball airplanes, explosives and lastly rocket
conmponents.

All these boats plied the river in low water and high
water, and all seasons. Snags above water and submerged
were a constant concern — Hawaiians called “Kanakas”
were employed to dive from snagboats to place a rope
around the piece for removal. They were renowned for
their swimming and diving prowess. Later snagboats with
grappling hooks were used. During foggy days and nights
the pilots sounded their whistles off the riverbanks/levees,
buildings and special sounding boards in order to navigate.
Shoals were usually designated by a light atop a dolphin
situated next to the levee.

All forms of commercial transportation ceased on the
Sacramento River when the Sacramento Deep Water
Channel opened in 1963. River traffic continues on the
straightened San Joaquin River.

Resources:

Steamboats in the Valley

Golden Notes

Historical Sites & Shipwrecks Along the Sacramento
River Between Sacramento City and Sherman Isl

California Transportation Co. lecture by Wm. Stritsel

Various lectures given to SRDHS

Memories of Delta Residents

Chrysopolis — The Sacramento River’s Most Glamorous
Paddlewheeler

Sacramento History — Journal of the Sacramento County
Historical Society Vol. VI No.s 1,2,3,4

Sacramento to San Francisco Shipping

RepowiiNe Tie Frurr avo Gram Thae
“Thie Capial City lft Sacramento his afternoon for dowiver poiats with 8,000 cases of

* canned asparagus,  porton ofthis year'scrop”

Sacraniento Bee, Saturday, May 27, 1911

“Alarge amount of shook for ruit oxes s being cartied dowa the tiver bys eainers afthe present
ttme prepasatory to the opening of the frit season. The Souther Pacific steamer Cherokee

carfed is frstload esterday, atd the Southern Paciicstoamer Frao has been carrying a load a
~ Qay. The Ieton and the Pridé ofthe River, belonging t the Calfornia Transportation Company,

havebeen handling about e orfour fons daly”
Sucramento Bee, Satuiday, June 14 191

“The barley moveneit has commenced i eamest off the Sﬂcramento River and yesterday tvo
big bangesof the Sacramento Transportaton Company arrived at thiscity bound for the bay with
s of brey.. Big shipments ofpeas fo the canteties e reaching the City Whar with e
- eatineofthe shipments offesh frts o the Bast, The steamer leron to-day brought between
<50 ad 600 boses for the new Libby, MeNeil & Libhy Plnt and te teaner Tallet brough
several hundred boses fom upeier oins for he Centra! Cahformﬁ Caery.”

’rsacrmmo Bee, Monday, July 28,1913

“The Southen Pcil f-day ot on 2 pecial i o, the Chrokee for the ccommodtion
of fout growers long the Sacranento River. The Southern Paciic whar resembled  small-
sized fumber yard to-day, with abot fften car oads of shook bei transfemredintothe holdof
the Cherokee. . The Cherokee's catgo was esignated for Steamboat Slough for the California
Fruit Exchange. The steamir will make regulr tips for several weeks, carying nothing but
shook, mils, pape, ., orthe fruft growes... The st boatJoadof shook which the Southern
Pacific has moved tis season lft Sactaento Satunday 1t s consigied to Jaes Ello,lage
fruit grower near Courtland, from the Pioneer Fruit Company.”

Sacrament Bee, Monday, May 2, 1916

L Cortesy Bill Siitee}
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RESOURCE CENTER NEWS

.. The Resource Center would like to recognize Clarice
Jonson for all the time and effort she has spent
contributing to the resources at the center. She has
“retired” from keeping current the local obituary binders
and the “Exploring Rio Vista’s Past” binders containing
articles written by Phil Pezzaglia. Thank you for all your
work and dedication — we will miss you! The binders are
available in the Resource Center for research.

.. Does anyone have old editions of the “Delta Current” or
old Directories of the Delta they would like to donate to

the Center? We would like to add to our collection.

.. New resource additions:

Archive # Donor Name
2008-001 Mar, Lim

2008-002 Hutchinson/Graham
2008-003 Hurley, Joann

Thank you for vour donations! We are recording each item
in our data base — many collections are done, but many
still need to be entered. Would you like to help? We work
almost every Tuesday from 10:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. and
need people to enter data (it’s already handwritten and just
needs to be typed.) Please call Bobbie at 777-6792 or
Esther at 777-2227 to make sure we will be there and join
us.

SRDHS 2008 SCHEDULE
July/August............. Summer Break
September 16................................. General Meeting
October 21, Board Meeting
November 18............................. General Meeting |
December....... e Board Meeting
December Newsletter
January 20,2009, Annual Potluck
CONTENTS
President’s Notes. .. ..., 1
New Members & Pear Fair............... .................... 1
“Water Transpostation™ —Part | ............................. 2
Resource Center News.................... e 7

SRIDHS NOtICES. .. o e 7

il Name:

i E-Mail:

| o I’'ve enclosed $150 to become a Lifetime Member

INFORMATION

Sacramento River Delta Historical Society web site is
srdhs.org. Please view and enjoy the information. If you
wish to email the resource center, the email address is
srdhs@riverdeltawireless.com.

MEMORIAL CONTRIBUTIONS

We would like to thank all those who made memorial
contributions to the Sacramento River Delta Historical
Society.

D YOU WANT TO CONNUE TO RECEIVE

THIS GREAT PUBLICATION???

Then make sure you pay your 2008 dues —
Use this form or one of our handy dues envelopes

Address:
City, State, Zip:
Phone:

o ’'m paying Annual dues for the following year(s):
o 2008 oOther
$25.00 a year for Annual Membership

o I’d like to register as an Honorary Member — Free to
those members 80 years and older

Please mail this form with a check payable to SRDHS to:

SRDHS Membership
.O. Box 293, Walnut Grove, CA 95690

NEWSLETTER STAFF
Editor............c. Kathleen Hutchinson
Design/Layout............................... Esther Koopman

*The Sacramento River Delta Historical Society publishes the
Sacramento River Delta Society Newsletter twice a year.




